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NYCHA RFP to Implement a Community-Driven Preservation 
and Investment Strategy for Fulton and Elliott-Chelsea 

2nd Round of Questions and Answers  

*The following  represent a set of responses to questions asked during the May 19th Pre-Submission 
Conference or received as of May 26, 2021. Note that all Defined Terms relate to the definitions provided 
within the RFP. 

 
1. Can NYCHA confirm that all the 425 units at Chelsea are all part of the LLC1 with an 

existing HAP contract and are therefore not subject to the Davis Bacon prevailing wage 

requirement?  

• A: As a general matter, renovations funded through PACT must comply with Davis Bacon 

prevailing wages requirements; however, the only exception to this requirement relates to 

work on units within properties within the LLC I portfolio, in this case the Chelsea 

development (425 apartments), where there is an existing HAP contract from a previous 

conversion to Section 8 (NYCHA‘s Mixed-Finance transaction).  

2. How does NYCHA envision the timing of the funds for the project if the new construction 
closing is after the rehab is underway how would the proceeds from new construction fill a 
gap in the rehab? 

• A: As detailed in the RFP, the PACT repairs must be substantially complete in advance of 
commencing work on the new construction component. Further, any acquisition proceeds 
associated with the new construction component should first be prioritized as a funding 
source for the PACT rehabilitation financial needs. NYCHA recommends teams 
demonstrate a feasible financial sequencing that achieves both of these goals, prioritizing 
repairs and funding them with available proceeds from the New Construction component.  
 

3. We are currently assuming a straight to perm execution. Will the committee review 
alternative financing scenarios? 

• A: All teams should propose a straight to perm financing for the rehabilitation component 
as their baseline. If teams would like to describe the proposed potential benefits of 
alternative financing in their narrative they are welcome to do so; however, the base case 
proposal for the rehabilitation financing must be a straight to perm execution.  
 

4. The updated April Exhibit C is using 2020 rents, are we able to utilize 2021 Fair Market 
Rents? 

• A: Teams must underwrite to the RAD contract rents and Fair Market Rents provided in 
the underwriting template, which will be applicable through December 2021. These rents 
reflect the appropriate Operating Cost Adjustment Factor (the “OCAF”) provided by HUD. 
NYCHA may provide revised rental assumptions at any time during the RFP selection 
process and after Applicants have been designated. 
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5. Is there any existing HDC/NYCHA Debt, Bond A Proceeds?  

• A: There is existing debt, which has been detailed in updated underwriting templates 
available on iSupplier. The full repayment requirements will need to be finalized as part of 
the closing process. However, the initial guidance is that applicants should present 
optionality in their underwriting for (1) the project’s financial sources to pay off this debt, 
or (2) for NYCHA to subordinate to other financial requirements.  
  

6. With the new NYCHA utility fee calculation, could NYCHA provide current utility expenses 
for last year? 

• A: NYCHA will provide the latest utility expenses information after designation. Applicants 
should utilize the expense assumptions provided within the RFP.  

 

7. Could you provide the current number of onsite NYCHA management staff? 

• A: Fully staffed, Elliott-Chelsea (Chelsea, Chelsea Addition, an Elliott) has 8 management 
staff and Fulton has 5 management staff.  

 

8. Are there any other income sources onsite? Laundry, parking, commercial/community? 

• A: Please see breakdown below: 
i. Commercial Space: No existing spaces; however, applicants may propose 

commercial uses as described within the RFP.  
ii. Community Facility: There are existing community facility spaces across the 

developments with more details found within Exhibit B.  

iii. Laundry: There are no active on-site laundry facilities at the developments; 
however, Fulton Houses has a laundry room at 400-412 West 17th Street that 
has been shut down for over 10 years. 

iv. Parking: There are surface parking lots at Fulton Houses; however, these 
locations have also been recommended for new development opportunities. If 
applicants propose new development at these locations then they must replace 
the parking spaces. 

 

Development Resident Surface Parking Lot # of Spaces 

FULTON 421 WEST 16TH STREET 34 

FULTON 432 WEST 18TH STREET 28 

FULTON 417 WEST 18TH STREET 12 

FULTON BESIDE 401 - 419 W 19TH STREET 12 

 

9. Is there any requirement to have a pre-qualifier as part of the responding team?  

• A: This RFP is open to all respondents, and as such neither applicants nor applicant 
team members need to be on the PACT Pre-Qualified list to submit. 
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